
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
Regular Public Board Meeting       Monday, December 12, 2022  
 
            Item                  Responsibility 

1 Call to Order – 7:00 p.m. S. Binder 

2 Acknowledgement of Traditional Lands S. Lewis 

3 Presentation: Centennial Secondary School Choir K. Dostaler 

4 Roll Call S. Binder 

5 Approval of Agenda S. Binder 

6 Declarations of Conflict of Interest S. Binder 

7 Consent Agenda Items 
(a)  Organizational and Public Board Meeting, November 21, 2022 
(b)  Special Closed Committee of the Whole Meeting, December 5, 2022 
(c)  Special Closed Committee of the Whole Meeting, November 14, 2022 
(d)  Special Closed Committee of the Whole Meeting, October 25, 2022 
(e)  Special Closed Committee of the Whole Meeting, October 17, 2022 

S. Binder 

8 Rise and Report from Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) 
  

R. Prinzen 

9 Report from Trustees appointed to External Organizations 
(a)  Ontario Public School Board Association (OPSBA) 

A. Robertson 

10 Standing Committee Reports 
(a)  Governance and Policy Committee 

i. Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee and Governance Directive 
ii. Governance Directive – 7.3 Public Participation and Delegations 

(b)  Physical Planning, Finance and Building Committee (nil) 
(c)  Student Learning, Well-Being and Equity Committee (nil) 
 

 
S. Binder  
 
 
 

11 Statutory Committee Reports 
(a)  Audit Committee (nil) 
(b)  Board Student Discipline Committee (nil) 
(c)  Parent Involvement Committee November 23, 2022 
(d)  Special Education Advisory Committee December 1, 2022 
 (e)  Supervised Alternative Learning Committee (nil) 

 
 

  
R. Speck 
S. Lewis  
 

12 Advisory Committee Reports 
(a)  Accessibility Advisory Committee (nil) 
(b)  Equity and Inclusivity Advisory Committee (nil) 
(c)  Indigenous Education Advisory Committee (nil) 
(d)  Student Voice Committee 

 
 
 
 
Student Trustees 

13 Ad Hoc Committee Report (nil)  

14 Chair’s Report S. Binder  

15 Director’s Report K. MacIver 
 
 
 
 
 



 

16 HPEDSB Staff Reports 
(a)  2022 Director’s Annual Report 
(b)  Reading/Literacy Update 
(c)  EQAO Report 
(d)  Staffing and Recruitment 
(e)  Revised Estimates 
(f)   Tender: THS Gym/Auditorium HVAC and Lighting – Bid Evaluation and 

Options Recommendation 

S. Binder 
K. MacIver/K. Donnell 
T. Elliott 
T. Elliott 
D. McFarlane 
N. Pfeiffer 
N. Pfeiffer 

17 Calendar of Events 
(a)  Physical Planning, Finance and Building Committee Jan. 9, 2023 
(b)  Student Learning, Well-Being and Equity Committee Jan. 11, 2023 
(c)  Governance and Policy Committee Jan. 16, 2023 
(d)  Regular Public Board Meeting Jan. 23, 2023 
(e)  Special Education Advisory Committee Meeting Jan. 26, 2023 
(d)  Bayside Secondary School “The Arts Coffee House” 2:30-7:30 p.m. 
(e)  Central Hastings School: January 11, 2023 Grade 8 Shadow Day, 
       January 19, 2023 Grade 8-9 transitions Parent Info Night 6:00-8:00 p.m.  

S. Binder  
 
 
 
 
 

18 Correspondence S. Binder 

19 Unfinished Business S. Binder 

20 Trustee Motions for Consideration S. Binder 

21 Trustee Notice of Motion S. Binder 

22 Adjournment S. Binder 

  



Organizational and Public Board      
Meeting 

        November 21, 2022 @ 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 

 

 

Members present:  S. Binder, E. Charlton, K. Hambly, K. Kramp, S. Lewis, S. Maracle, R. Prinzen      
A. Robertson, R. Speck 

          
Student Trustees:  L. Hung, S. Spencer, J. Webster 
 
Absent:          K. Dostaler, T. Elliott 
 
Resource:          K. Donnell, K. MacIver, D. McFarlane, K. Niemi, N. Pfeiffer,  
 
Minutes:          D. Lucas, Executive Assistant 
 
1. Call to order 

Chair Binder called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone to the Public 
Board meeting.  
 

2. Acknowledgement of Traditional Lands 
Trustee Charlton offered the Land Acknowledgement  
 

3. Roll Call 
Chair Binder requested a roll call of Trustees and Student Trustees. 
 

4. Approval of the agenda 
Mover: K. Hambly    
Seconder: R. Prinzen 
 
That the agenda for the November 21, 2022 Organizational and Public Board Meeting be 
approved.  

Carried 
5. Conflict of Interest – None declared. 

 
6. Consent Agenda Items 

Vice-Chair Prinzen requested item 6(d) to be removed from the consent items for corrections. 
Item 6(d) was moved to 6.1 for further discussion. 

 
Mover: A. Robertson 
Seconder: K. Hambly 
 
Consent agenda items approved with the exception of 6(d)  

Carried 
 

6.1 Vice-chair Prinzen noted the corrections required on item 6.1 were to include the nomination of 
Trustee Parks for Vice-chair. Director MacIver noted that the correction was made and provided an 
update of the minutes to Trustees. 
 
Mover: R. Prinzen 
Seconder: S. Lewis 

 
Minutes of November 15, 2022, item 6.1 was approved with corrections. 

Carried 
 

 Page 3



 
Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
Organizational and Public Board Meeting 
November 21, 2022                                                                                                                     Page | 2 

 
7. Report from External Organizations: nothing to report at this time from OPSBA. 

 
8. Standing Committee Reports: 

(a) Governance and Policy Committee Recommendations 
 (i)   Board Vacancy: The Committee was informed of a vacancy at the November 15, 2022 

meeting. 
Recommendation 
Moved:  S. Lewis 
Seconded: K. Hambly 

 
That the Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board use an 
appointment process with applications and interviews, as described in Policy 
3H: Filing Vacancies on the Board, to fill the Board vacancy created by the 
resignation of Kristen Parks. 

Carried 
 

(ii)   2022-2023 Committee Membership: The Committee reviewed the expressions of interest 
from trustees for the 2022-2023 Committee Membership, with a recommendation for 
approval.  
Recommendation 
Moved:  R. Prinzen 

 Seconded: S. Maracle 
 

That the Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the 
committee membership for the Standing, Statutory, Advisory, 
Administrative and External committees with the exception of the OPSBA 
representative as presented in Appendix A. 

Carried 
 

(iii)    Committee Meeting Dates: The Committee reviewed the committee meeting dates for the 
remainder of the 2022-2023 school year, with a recommendation for approval. 
Recommendation 
Moved: S. Lewis 
Seconded: E. Charlton 

 
That the Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the 
committee meeting dates and times for the remainder of the 2022-2023 
school year. 

Carried 
 

(iv) Election for Trustee Representation on Ontario Public School Board Association 
(OPSBA):   
Four trustees had expressed interest in representing OPSBA. No other trustee 
expressed interest from the floor. Trustee Hambly and Vice-chair Prinzen removed 
their names as representatives, Chair Binder opted to  be the alternate representative 
for OPSBA and was acclaimed.  Trustee Robertson was acclaimed as primary 
representative for OPSBA.  

 
(v) Elections for Chair and Vice-chair of the Physical Planning, Finance and Building 

Committee:   
Nominations were called for the position of Chair. Trustee Charlton nominated Trustee 
Kramp, Vice-Chair Prinzen seconded the nomination. Trustee Kramp accepted the 
nomination.  Chair Binder asked for nominations a second and third time, no other 
nominations came forward; Trustee Kramp was declared Chair for the Physical 
Planning, Finance and Building Committee.   

Page 4



 
Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
Organizational and Public Board Meeting 
November 21, 2022                                                                                                                     Page | 3 

 
 
 Nominations were called for the position of Vice-chair. Trustee Robertson nominated 

Trustee Charlton, Vice-chair Prinzen seconded the nomination. Trustee Charlton 
accepted the nomination.  Chair Binder asked for nominations a second and third time, 
no other nominations came forward; Trustee Charlton was declared Vice-chair for the 
Physical Planning, Finance and Building Committee.  

 
(vi)  Elections for Chair and Vice-chair of the Student Learning, Well-Being and Equity  

Committee: Nominations were called for the position of Chair. Trustee Maracle nominated 
Trustee Lewis, Vice-Chair Prinzen seconded the nomination. Trustee Lewis accepted the 
nomination.  Chair Binder asked for nominations a second and third time, no other 
nominations came forward; Trustee Lewis was declared Chair for the Student Learning, 
Well-Being and Equity Committee.   

 
 Nominations were called for the position of Vice-chair. Trustee Maracle nominated Trustee 

Speck, Trustee Kramp seconded the nomination. Trustee Speck accepted the nomination.  
Chair Binder asked for nominations a second and third time, no other nominations came 
forward; Trustee Speck was declared Vice-chair for the Student Learning, Well-Being and 
Equity Committee.   

 
(b)   Physical Planning, Finance and Building Committee - there was nothing to report. 

 
(c)  Student Learning, Well-Being and Equity Committee - there was nothing to report. 

 
9. Statutory Committee Reports: 

(a)  Audit Committee - there was nothing to report. 
(b)  Board Student Discipline Committee - there was nothing to report. 
(c)  Parent Involvement Committee - there was nothing to report. 
(d)  Special Education Advisory Committee: 

i.  A recommendation came forward to approve the membership and the members at large for 
the Special Education Advisory Committee for the four-year term of the board, commencing 
November 2022. 
Recommendation 
Moved:  K. Hambly 
Seconded: A. Robertson 
 
That Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the following 
local association appointments to the Special Education Advisory Committee for 
the four-year term of the Board, commencing November 2022. 

●  Children’s Mental Health Services – Nancy Hamilton-Powers 

●  Community Living Prince Edward – Ashley Card 

●  Community Living Quinte West – Connie McLean 

●  Counselling Services of Belleville and District – Andrea Brennan 

●  Easter Seals Ontario – Richelle Glenn 

●  Family Space Quinte Inc. – Wendy Haystead 

●  Inclusive Action in Ontario – Donna Vanderkloet 

●  Loyalist College – Eve Cotman 

●  North Hastings Community Integration Association – Janet Christie 

●  Quinte Children’s Treatment Centre – Sandra Ward 

●  Trenton Military Family Resource Centre – Andi-Lynn James 
Carried 

 
 
 Page 5



 
Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
Organizational and Public Board Meeting 
November 21, 2022                                                                                                                     Page | 4 

 
 
Recommendation 
Moved:  E. Charlton 
Seconded: K. Hambly 

 
That Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the following 
member at large appointments to the Special Education Advisory Committee for the 
four-year term of the Board, commencing November 2022. 

●  Jennifer Parker 

●  Lisa Solski 
Carried 

 
(d)  Supervised Alternative Learning Committee – there was nothing to report. 

 
10. Advisory Committee Reports: 

 (a)  Accessibility Advisory Committee – there was nothing to report. 
 (b)  Equity and Inclusivity Advisory Committee – there was nothing to report. 
 (c)  Indigenous Education Advisory Committee – there was nothing to report. 
 (d)  Student Voice Committee – Student Trustee Webster reported the following: 

● new initiatives and activities are being planned to promote student engagement, 
● each Student Trustee will visit designated schools to improve communication with 

schools and students, and 
● creating a google form to send out to students to gather feedback on how they want 

student voice to look like in the coming year. 

 
11. Ad Hoc Committee Report: there was nothing to report. 

 
12. Chair Report: there was nothing to report. 

 
13. Director’s Report: Director MacIver provided the following highlights: 

● acknowledged that schools were open for in-person learning as the CUPE strike did not take 
place, 

● high absenteeism rates at schools for students and staff for various reasons; reminders 
about proper hand hygiene, coughing/sneezing into one's elbow; wearing masks is 
recommended, 

● trustees are welcome to attend school events when invited by the principal, and 
● Prince Charles Public School (Trenton) was the recipient of $14,400 from Walmart 

Trenton for its Food for Learning program; the funds were raised through customer 
donations at checkout. 
 

14. HPEDSB Staff Reports: there was nothing to report. 
 

15. Calendar of Events for November 2022: 
a. December 1 and 15, 2022 Special Education Advisory Committee 
b. December 5, 2022 Governance and Policy Committee 
c. December 12, 2022 Public Board Meeting 
d. schedule of events taking place at schools  
 

16. Correspondence 
● Nil 

 
17. Unfinished Business 

● Nil 
 
 Page 6



 
Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
Organizational and Public Board Meeting 
November 21, 2022                                                                                                                     Page | 5 

 
18. Trustee Motions for Consideration 

● Nil 
 
19. Trustee Notice of Motions: 

● Nil 
 
20. Meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Chair   Secretary 

 

Page 7



 Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 9(a) 

December 12, 2022 
 

 

 Decision _ _   Information   _X_ 

 

      
 
To:  Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board  

   
From:  Amanda Robertson, OPSBA Representative 

  
Re:   OPSBA Board of Directors Update  

 
Purpose  
To provide an OPSBA Board of Directors update including an overview of the November OPSBA 
Board of Directors Meeting and OPSBA Advocacy Day Event held November 28, 2022.  
 
Background 

The OPSBA Board of Directors hosts regular board meetings five times a year. The OPSBA board 
consists of 50 individuals representing all member boards. OPSBA’s five 2022-2023 Multi-Year 
Strategic Priorities are: Advocating for the Whole Child and Student Well-Being, Advancing 
Reconciliation: First Nation, Metis and Inuit Education, Strengthening Positive Labour Relations, 
Advocating for Sustainable and Equitable Education Funding, and Supporting Trustees as Leaders 
in Education.  
 
A Summary of the OPSBA November 2022 meeting can be found here. Items of note include: 

 Presentation of the study on “The Powers and Duties of School Boards -- Health and Well-
Being of Students and Employees” by Anthony F. Brown LLB, LLM, M.Ed. that explored 
powers and duties laid out in statute or legislation with respect to mask mandates for 
students and staff.  

 Nanos Polling Results: Nine in ten Ontarians agree or somewhat agree that spending on 
Public Education is an investment in the future: Survey. It also looked at Funding and 
education priorities, Indigenous reconciliation, and Electing or appointing School Board 
Trustees.  

 
OPSBA Advocacy Day was held November 28, 2022, at Queen’s Park in Toronto. Highlights of the 
day include:  

 A press conference in the morning, where OPSBA executives and Nik Nanos presented the 
results from the Nanos Education Survey.  

 Directors engaged in government meetings with MPPs and senior staff. We provided 
background information on OPSBA and highlighted three Advocacy Day Priorities including 
Capital and Facilities, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion, and Student Transportation.  

 Directors were able to attend Question Period in the Members Gallery. 

 A reception was held in the evening, where Directors were addressed by the Minister of 
Education, Stephen Lecce, the Education Critic, MPP Chandra Pasma, and Liberal Critic 
for Education and former Minister of Education, Mitzie Hunter. Retiring OPSBA Executive 
Director Rusty Hicks was thanked for his years of service to the organization. 

 
Legislative Update 

 Bill 39, Better Municipal Governance Act, 2022 

 
  

Page 8

https://www.opsba.org/opsba-bod-meeting-nov27-22/
https://www.opsba.org/legislative-update-dec05-22/


Regular Public Board Meeting  
Report 9(a) 

December 12, 2022 

 

Upcoming OPSBA Events 
 

 OPSBA’s 2023 Public Education Symposium is coming up January 26-28 at the Sheraton 
Centre in Toronto. All new trustees are strongly encouraged to attend.  

 

 Indigenous Trustees Council meeting January 26, 1-4pm at the Toronto Sheraton Centre. 
 

 
Action 
None required. 
 
 

Page 9

https://www.opsba.org/pes-registration-is-open/


 
Regular Public Board Meeting 

Report 10(a)i 
December 12, 2022 

 
 

 
 

       Decision _ X _   Information _ _ 
  

 
To:      Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 

   
From:  Shannon Binder, Chair of the Board and Chair of Governance and Policy Committee 
  
Re:    Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee 

 
Purpose  
To provide a committee report to comprise the Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee and approve 
the Governance Directives for the Ad Hoc Committee as per HPEDSB By-Laws and policies. 
 
Background 
At the November 21, 2022 Organizational Meeting of the Board, the Board approved an 
appointment process to fill a Trustee vacancy as per Policy 3-H: Filling Vacancies on the 
Board.  Advertising for the vacancy started on November 24, 2022 and applications will be 
received through to December 21, 2022.   
 
Next Steps 
HPEDSB Policy 3-H: Filling Vacancies on the Board, sections 4 c (iii) and (iv) requires the 
secretary of the board to ask all trustees to indicate their intention about their attendance and 
participation in the interviews which will in turn compose the ad hoc selection committee.   As a 
part of this report, each trustee will be given the opportunity to indicate their intention to participate 
in the Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee. 
 
The following timeline outlines the committee’s work: 

 November 24, 2022  Post and advertise trustee vacancy 

 December 12, 2022  Form Ad Hoc Committee 

 December 19, 2022 @ 3 pm Ad Hoc Committee meeting 

 December 21, 2022 @ 4 pm Close application period 

 January 19, 2023   Interview qualified candidates 

 January 23, 2023   Bring recommendation to the Regular Board Meeting 
 
Attached to this report is the Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee Governance Directive reviewed 
by the Governance and Policy Committee to come forward as a recommendation for approval.   
 
Recommendation 
Moved: 
Seconded: 
 

That the Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the Governance 
Directives for the Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee as revised and as required by 
HPEDSB Board By-Laws and Policy 3-H: Filling Vacancies on the Board. 

 

Page 10



HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

TRUSTEE VACANCY AD HOC COMMITTEE 

  

 

Committee Classification: Ad Hoc Committee 
HPEDSB By-Laws 
 

Composition:  

Reporting Structure: Reports Directly to Board 

Term: Expire upon Completion of Mandate 

Administrative Support: Director of Education  

Approved: 
 

 

Resources:  

 
Governance Directive 
The Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board By-Laws outline the creation and terms 
for Ad Hoc committees.  This Governance Directive outlines the composition, terms of 
reference, reporting relationship and expected date of completion for the Trustee Vacancy Ad 
Hoc Committee. 
 
If this Governance Directive is found to be inconsistent with or contradict any legislation or 
regulation, the legislation or regulation will prevail. 
 
Terms of Reference 
The Committee will: 
 be established by the Board of Trustees to oversee the appointment of a Trustee for Sidney 

(excluding CFB) and Ward 4 Frankford (1) of Quinte West; 
 expire upon appointment of the Trustee;  
 adhere to HPEDSB By-Laws and Board Policy 3-H: Filling Vacancies on the Board.  Where 

there is disagreement between the two, HPEDSB By-Laws will prevail; 
 be comprised with a minimum of three HPEDSB trustees and will include all trustees who 

indicate their interest at the December 12, 2022 Regular Meeting of the Board; 
 conduct its business in closed sessions in accordance with Education Act section 207 (2) b; 
 maintain strict confidentiality throughout the process; 
 elect a chair at the first meeting using the process described in the HPEDSB’s By-Laws, 

section 3.4 Election Process; 
 follow the timeline as indicated: 

o November 24, 2022  Post and advertise trustee vacancy 
o December 12, 2022  Form Ad Hoc Committee 
o December 19, 2022 @ 3 pm Ad Hoc Committee meeting 
o December 21, 2022 @ 4 pm Close application period 
o January 19, 2023  Interview qualified candidates 
o January 23, 2023  Bring recommendation to the Regular Board Meeting 

 report and make recommendation within 90 days of November 15, 2022, a qualified 
candidate to the Board of Trustees; 

 adjust the timeline only through a two-thirds vote and only if the appointment can occur prior 
to February 14, 2023 to meet legislative requirements; 

 excuse any committee member should a Conflict of Interest be declared at any time; 

Page 11

https://quintewest.ca/council-city-administration/elections/
https://quintewest.ca/council-city-administration/elections/


HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

TRUSTEE VACANCY AD HOC COMMITTEE 

  

 

 short-list candidates based on an established set of criteria; 
 establish and use a list of common questions for each applicant; 
 interview candidates on board premises in intervals of no more than 15 minutes; 
 ensure the Committee’s deliberations are undertaken with the intent to achieve the goals of 

equity, decolonization, inclusion, anti-racism, anti-oppression and accessibility and in 
compliance with its obligations under the Ontario Human Rights Code and related policies; 

 ensure that the Committee’s work supports the goals in the Board’s Multi-Year Strategic 
Plan and the Board’s Vision, Mission and Priorities. 

 

Page 12



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 10(a)ii 

December 12, 2022 
 

 Decision _ X_   Information ___ 

 
 

To:      Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 

   
From:  Shannon Binder, Chair of the Board and Governance and Policy Committee 

  
Re:   Governance Directive – Public Participation and Delegations 

 
Purpose  
To provide a committee report to approve the Governance Directive – 7.3 Public Participation and 
Delegations as outlined in the HPEDSB By-Laws. 
 
Background 
Following the approval of the HPEDSB By-Laws on September 26, 2022, Section 7: Governance 
Directives are required for Public Participation and Delegations. Through the approval of this 
Directive, Board Policy 3A: Delegations and Presentations will be revoked. 
 
Governance Directives are not a part of the official By-Laws and as such are not subject to the same 
criteria to revise.  Future revisions to governance directives will be considered through the 
Governance and Policy Standing Committee and brought to board for final approval.   
 
Recommendation 
Moved: 
Seconded: 
 

That the Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve the 
Governance Directive – 7.3 Public Participation and Delegation.  

 
Attachments: 
7.3  Governance Directive - Public Participation and Delegation and Delegation Request 
Form 
       

 

Page 13



HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

7.3 Public Participation and Delegations 

  

 

 

 
 

Hastings and Prince Edward 
District School Board By-
Laws: 

Section 6.1, Public Participation in Board and 
Committee Meetings 
Section 6.2, Delegations 

Administrative Support: Director of Education 
Senior Staff Assigned to support Board Standing 
Committees 

Approved: 
 

 

Resources: Delegation Request Form 
Board Policy 
 

 
Governance Directive 
 
The Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board By-Laws Section 6: Governance and 
Accountability Framework outline requirements for public participation in Board and Committee 
meetings as well as the manner to delegate. Trustees regarding subject matter that falls within 
the Board’s Governance responsibilities. 
 
If this Governance Directive is found to be inconsistent with or contradict any legislation or 
regulation, the legislation or regulation will prevail. 
 
Principles of Participation 
Procedure 108: Process for Addressing Public Concerns: Parents/guardians should refer to this 
procedure when addressing individual student matters or concerns, beginning at the school 
level. 
 
This Directive provides information for members of the public who, in addition to the above 
methods of communication, may also wish to appear as a Delegation at a Board Standing or 
Committee of the Whole meeting to share their views with Trustees. 
 
Responsibility 
Implementation of the Governance Directive - Public Participation and Delegations, is the 
responsibility of all Trustees, senior staff who provide administrative support to Board Standing 
Committees and the Director of Education. 
 
Staff will make every effort to provide accommodations that may be required by a Delegation 
throughout the submission of a Request to Delegate and during the Committee meeting, 
including translation services, where possible, and assistance with technology, as available. 
 
Application and Scope 
This Directive applies to members of the educational community within the jurisdiction of the 
Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board who wish to share their views by making a 
Delegation to Trustees. This includes parents/guardians, students, staff members, volunteers, 

Page 14



HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

7.3 Public Participation and Delegations 

  

 

community organizations and other individuals who reside in the community and have an 
interest in matters related to public education. 
 
Delegation presentations will not be received according to By-Law 6.2.4: 
a) at  Board Meetings (except by the Special Education Advisory Committee, as prescribed in 

Regulation 463/97); 
b) by individuals or commercial enterprises who wish to promote products or services to the 

Board; 
c) regarding personal issues related to the Delegate, a staff member or a student;  
d) regarding employment issues that are covered under HPEDSB collective agreements or 

other employment contracts;  
e) about matters which are the subject of litigation with the Board, or where all rights to a 

hearing, appeal or review under the Education Act or its regulations have not been 
commenced or concluded;  

f) prior to the Delegate pursuing any other Board processes that currently exist (including 
those outlined in Board Policy or Procedure to address their concern(s); 

g) about matters that are currently the subject of a complaint to the Ontario Ombudsman or are 
under investigation or review by that Office, the HPEDSB pursuant to a HPEDSB policy or 
procedure or legislation, or the Code of Conduct; regarding matters that are not within the 
jurisdiction of the HPEDSB;  

h) twice within a 12-month period, unless the subject matter has changed substantially; or  
i) regarding subjects for which there are other opportunities for the Delegate to provide input 

to the Board, such as School Accommodation Review Meetings, the Budget Development 
Process, the Board’s Multi-Year Strategic Planning Process, etc. 
 

Delegation Process 
Subject Matter and Method of Delivery 
Delegations may address a Board Standing Committee on a matter within the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference or on a specific item on the Committee’s meeting agenda. 
 
Delegations who wish to speak on a topic that is; a) within the Terms of Reference for all Board 
Standing Committees, or b) not within the Terms of Reference for any Board Standing 
Committee, may request to speak before all Trustees at a Committee of the Whole meeting, 
providing the subject matter is within jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees (as determined by the 
Governance and Policy Committee). 
 
Delegations may provide input in writing, including petitions, in person and/or using audio and/or 
visual technology (where such capacity is available at the Committee meeting location). 
 
Each Delegation topic will be given ten minutes to make a presentation to the Committee. 
 
Request to Delegate 
Delegations must submit a Delegation Request Form, as follows: 

 Requests must be received a minimum of three (3) business days prior to the day of the 
meeting. Alternative timelines may be considered or required, with the approval of the 
Committee Chair or Board Chair, for the purpose of recognizing Statutory Holidays or Days 
of Significance. 

Page 15



HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

7.3 Public Participation and Delegations 

  

 

 Delegation Request Forms may be submitted through email, via fax, or delivered in person 
to the Board Chair, and/or the Director’s Office. 

 
Delegation Request Form 
The following information is required on the Delegation Request Form: 
a) name, home address and contact information (phone and/or email address) for each 

speaker*; 
b) any affiliation with an association or group which has given consent for the Delegation to 

speak on its behalf; 
c) name of presiding officer for an association or group and signature of presiding officer for an 

association or group; 
d) the agenda item or subject matter the Delegation wishes to speak about, including preferred 

meeting date(s), if known; 
e) a description of the Delegation’s general position and associated rationale; 
f) one copy of any additional written materials, including petitions, for distribution at the 

meeting; 
g) staff members of HPEDSB must disclose their employment status (not position or location) 

on the Delegation Request Form and, if given delegate status under this Governance 
Directive, at the beginning of their presentation to the Committee. 

*Delegates may choose to have up to three speakers, share the ten minutes allotted for making 
a presentation, provided this information is submitted on the Delegation Request Form. 
 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Delegations should be aware that the name of the Delegation, their presentation, any written 
submission(s) and related discussion form part of the Board’s official public record of the 
meeting.  In accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act, personal contact information provided on the Delegation Request Form will not form part of 
the public record. 
 
Closed Session 
Depending on the subject matter, a Delegation may be scheduled for Closed Session of a 
Board Standing or Committee of the Whole meeting, in accordance with Sections 207(2), 
207(2.1) and 218.3(10) of the Education Act, which outline the following provisions for hearing a 
matter in a Closed Session: 
a) the security or property of HPEDSB; 
b) the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect of a member of the 

Board of Trustees, or a member of a Statutory or Advisory Committee, a current or 
prospective employee, a student, parent or guardian of the student; 

c) acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
d) decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of HPEDSB; 
e) litigation affecting HPEDSB; or 
f) an ongoing investigation under the Ombudsman respecting HPEDSB. 
Any information related to a Delegation heard in Closed Session will remain confidential, as 
required by the Education Act. 
 
Confirmation of Delegate Status 
The Governance and Policy Committee will consider all Delegation Requests and is authorized 
to take any actions as included in HPEDSB By-Law Section 6.2.5.  

Page 16

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02


HASTINGS AND PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 
 

7.3 Public Participation and Delegations 

  

 

 
During the Meeting 
Delegations and Committee members will ensure that their remarks are respectful and 
professional and will take direction from the Committee Chair during the meeting. Offensive 
language or negative personal references regarding any individual will be ruled out of order by 
the Committee Chair. 
 
If a Delegation involves more than one speaker, the maximum time for remarks by all speakers 
is ten minutes.  Reallocation of speaking time to another individual is not permitted during the 
meeting. 
 
In extenuating circumstances, Committee members may consider passing a recommendation to 
permit a Delegation to speak beyond the ten minute time limit. 
 
Trustees may choose to take one or more of the following actions after the presentation, 
question period and any related discussion concludes: 
a) receive the presentation for information; 
b) refer the presentation to another Committee for action or information; 
c) refer the presentation to the Director of Education for follow-up with the Delegation by 

assigned staff (subject to consultation with the Director or Designate and the regarding 
appropriate timelines); 

d) request an information report from staff be presented at a subsequent meeting (subject to 
consultation with the Director or Designate and the Board and the Governance and Policy 
Committee, regarding appropriate timelines). 

The actions outlined above require a formal recommendation and majority vote of the 
Committee members in attendance and are subject to final approval by Trustees at a Board 
Meeting. 
 

Page 17



 
  

 
 

 
Delegation Request Form 

 
Instructions 
Individuals or groups requesting to make a delegation to a Committee of Hastings and Prince 
Edward District School Board are required to:  
 
1. Review Section 6.2 Delegations of the By-Laws, and the Governance Directive - Public 

Participation and Delegations.  
2. Submit a Delegation Request Form providing the particulars of the delegation. Please 

complete both pages and provide any additional materials for distribution at the meeting.  
Only materials included at submission will be distributed. 

 
The completed Delegation Request Form must be received in accordance with timelines stated 
in the Section 6.2 Delegations of the By-Laws, and the Governance Directive - Public 
Participation and Delegations, no later than three (3) business days prior to the commencement 
of a Standing Committee meeting. 
 
When a number of individuals wish to address the Board on the same issue, the group will 
select a spokesperson. 
 
Delegation presentations will not be received in accordance with Section 6.2.4 of the By-Laws. 
 
Delegations and Committee members will ensure that their remarks are respectful and 
professional, and will take direction from the Committee Chair during the meeting.  Offensive 
language or negative personal references regarding any individual will be ruled out of order by 
the Committee Chair.  All Delegations are advised to review and abide by the provisions 
Procedure 145: District Code of Conduct. 
 
Reasonable accommodation will be provided upon request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 
 
 

 
 

Delegation Request Form 
 
Please provide the following information no later than three (3) business days prior to the 
meeting date to the Director’s Office. 
 
Contact Information: 
Affiliation (Association Group):  _________________________________________________ 
or 
Spokesperson (if designated):   _________________________________________________ 
 
Authority to speak: (if applicable) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of presiding officer                                                     Signature of presiding of officer 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of requesting person 
 
Speaker 1* 
Name:   _________________________________________________________ 
Preferred Pronouns:   _________________________________________________________ 
Home Address: _________________________________________________________ 
City & Postal Code: _________________________________________________________ 
Phone: ______________________                     Email address:  _______________________ 
 
Additional Speaker* 
Name:   _________________________________________________________ 
Preferred Pronouns:   _________________________________________________________ 
Home Address: _________________________________________________________ 
City & Postal Code: _________________________________________________________ 
Phone: ______________________                     Email address:  _______________________ 
 
Additional Speaker* 
Name:   _________________________________________________________ 
Preferred Pronouns:   _________________________________________________________ 
Home Address: _________________________________________________________ 
City & Postal Code: _________________________________________________________ 
Phone: ______________________                     Email address:  _______________________ 
 
Requested Committee Name and Meeting: ______________________________________ 
Date: ____________________________________________ 
 
Agenda Item/Topic: _________________________________________________________ 
Please provide a list of attachments to be included in the committee agenda package (attach to 
this request).  Additional materials brought to the meeting will be handed out at the Chair’s 
discretion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



   

 

Description of the Delegation’s speaking points, position and associated rationale (provide 
specific details and attachments if required): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Translation services: Yes _________No _____ (i.e., Language) _______________ 
 
Technology required/assistance: (mic/projector, TV, etc) _____________________________ 
(any other special set up required)_______________________________________________ 
 
Please specify if you will be presenting virtually_____ or in person ____. 
 
*Staff members of Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board must disclose their 
employment status (not position nor location) on the Delegation Request Form, and if given 
delegate status at the beginning of their presentation to the Committee, delegation 
presentations will not be received in accordance with Section 6.2.4 of the HPEDSB By-Laws. 
 
 
 
 
Return to:  Director’s Office, The Education Centre 
        Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
                  156 Ann Street, Belleville, ON K8N 3L3 
                  email: directors.office@hpedsb.on.ca 
                  Date Received:___________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Personal information is collected under the authority of the Education Act, Sections s.169.1 and 
170, for purposes related to a Board or Committee Meeting, and in accordance with the 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.  Questions about the collection 
may be directed to the Freedom of Information Co-coordinator at 613-966-1170 ext 62354.  

Page 20

mailto:directors.office@hpedsb.on.ca


Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(a) 

December 12, 2022 
 

 

 
            Decision __   Information _X_ 

 
  

 
To:       Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
 
From:  Katherine MacIver, Director of Education  
  Kerry Donnell, Communications and Privacy Manager 
 
Re:  Director’s Annual Report  

 
Purpose 
To provide Trustees with a report highlighting the work and progress of Hastings and Prince 
Edward District School Board for 2022. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan 
All areas of the Strategic Plan are connected to the Director’s Annual Report. Specifically, the 
Director’s Annual Report will “Ensure Responsible Communications” through “Increase[d] 
awareness and presence through the sharing of compelling student, staff and school experiences”. 
 
Background 
The Education Act section 283 (3) requires the Chief Executive Officer or Director of Education to 
report the activities and action of the system to the Board of Trustees each year and to submit this 
report to the Ministry of Education by January 31. The annual reports can be found on the HPEDSB 
website: https://www.hpeschools.ca/board/board_resources/publications 
 
The HPEDSB 2022 Director’s Annual Report is a collaborative effort of all aspects of our 
system.  Departments, schools and staff have contributed information, data, reports and stories as a 
part of the process.  It presents a cross-section of stories and information that make us proud to be 
HPEDSB.   
 
Current situation 
This year’s Director’s Annual Report will be shared with Trustees at the December 12, 2022 Regular 
Meeting of the Board. Following this meeting it will be posted to the HPEDSB website, shared with 
the Ministry of Education and posted to @HPEschools social media 
 
Appendix A: 2022 Director’s Annual Report 

Page 21

https://www.hpeschools.ca/board/board_resources/publications


Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(b) 

December 12, 2022 
 

 

 
           Decision ___   Information _X_ 

 
  

 
To:       Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 

 
From:  Tina Elliott, Superintendent of Education, Curriculum Services 
 
Re:  Reading/Literacy Update 

 
Purpose 

To share an overview of foundational literacy practices within Hastings and Prince Edward District 
School Board (HPEDSB) at the early elementary level. 

 
Link to Strategic Plan 
The Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board (HPEDSB) Strategic Plan identifies a system 
action of annual increase in students (Kindergarten to Grade 3) reading at benchmark by 
establishing a comprehensive early literacy strategy, with an emphasis on speech and oral language 
development and phonemic and phonetic competence levels. This is part of the Strategic Plan 
priority to improve student success and achievement. 

 
Background 
Weakness in decoding skills is the primary deficit for readers who struggle to meet reading 
benchmarks and comprehend what they read. There needs to be an intentional focus on 
developing automaticity in word recognition for readers. Research says that we can mitigate 
factors that may influence reading achievement – including socio-economic status and learning 
disabilities – through a systematic approach to early screening, intervention, and explicit, direct 
instruction in phonics and phonological awareness, starting in Kindergarten. 
 
In Spring 2022, the Ontario Human Rights Commission (O.H.R.C.) published the Right to Read 

inquiry report highlighting how learning to read is not a privilege but a basic and essential human right. 
The report includes 157 recommendations to the Ministry of Education, school boards and faculties of 
education on how to address systemic issues that affect the right to learn to read. The report combines 
science of reading research, human rights expertise and lived experience of students, parents, and 
educators to provide recommendations on curriculum and instruction, early screening, reading 
interventions, accommodation, professional assessments, and systemic issues. Implementing the 
O.H.R.C.’s recommendations will ensure more equitable opportunities and outcomes for students in 

Ontario’s public education system.  
 
Current Situation 
In HPEDSB, we are committed to ensuring meaningful and equitable access to literacy. Through 
explicit and systematic instruction, our goal is for students to be able to decode and recognize 
individual written words, thereby allowing them to comprehend a text as a whole unit. To develop 
automaticity in word recognition, students need to be exposed to three keys aspects of 
instructional practice: 

 Address and correct the students’ phonological awareness difficulties and teach 
phonological awareness to the advanced (phoneme) level.  

 Provide explicit, systematic phonic decoding instruction and/or reinforcement. 

 Provide students with ample opportunities to apply these developing skills to reading 
connected text. 

Page 52

https://www.ohrc.on.ca/sites/default/files/Right%20to%20Read%20Executive%20Summary_OHRC%20English_0.pdf
https://www.ohrc.on.ca/sites/default/files/Right%20to%20Read%20Executive%20Summary_OHRC%20English_0.pdf


  Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(b) 

December 12, 2022 
  

Assessment plays a key role to assist the teacher in targeting areas of strength and need, in 
monitoring student reading development, and in planning appropriate instruction. Our work as a 
system has been to ensure our assessment tools align with scientific research around reading 
development. To maximize time for explicit instruction, key literacy assessments have been made 
available digitally and directly correlate to resources purchased for all schools. The goal of our 
assessment tools is to assist educators in efficiently determining next instructional steps to support 
students in developing mastery of foundational skills, ultimately supporting comprehension.  

To support systematic, explicit reading instruction and intervention, and increase achievement for all 
K-3 students in HPEDSB, Curriculum Services has implemented the following supports: 

 System-wide distribution and implementation of the HPEDSB Foundational Reading Instruction 
and Assessment Guide, including a refined HPEDSB Phonics and Phonological Awareness 
Continuums which provides systematic direction to Primary teachers on the order and 
expectations for instruction of these foundational literacy skills. 

 A consistent set of teaching and learning resources to support research-aligned instruction in 
the full spectrum of skills needed for reading comprehension for all classroom teachers in 
Kindergarten, Grade 1, 2, and 3. 

 A standard suite of reliable, validated, and easy to administer screening and diagnostic 
assessments to measure foundational literacy skills. 

 Professional development opportunities conducted through an Expression of Interest model, 
supported by the resource allocation of learning partners, alongside other capacity building 
supports.   

 
This systematic and research based HPEDSB approach to increasing the number of students 
reading at benchmark, by Grade 3, represents the required Strategic Plan priority of establishing a 
comprehensive early literacy strategy. This strategy is in its third year of implementation and situates 
the school board in alignment with the O.H.R.C. Right to Read recommendations. Most importantly, 
the HPEDSB priority on foundational literacy and reading instruction is creating greater equity of 
opportunities and outcomes for all primary students to become more confident, engaged, and 
proficient readers. 
 
 

 

Page 53

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jTfnRpMG5w2o9tDQuNx3KsRL4SvCP17G/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jTfnRpMG5w2o9tDQuNx3KsRL4SvCP17G/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1MQeHOG53Avkn6vN1mE1OtvaKtAmER7mzRiD711LKYOE/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1MQeHOG53Avkn6vN1mE1OtvaKtAmER7mzRiD711LKYOE/edit?usp=sharing


Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(c) 

December 12, 2022 
 

 

 

           Decision ___   Information _X_ 

 

  

 
To:       Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
 
From:  Tina Elliott, Superintendent of Education, Curriculum Services 
 
Re:  EQAO Report 

 
Purpose 
To provide an overview of the achievement of Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
students, as measured by the Education and Quality Accountability Office (EQAO) for 2021-2022. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan 
The Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board (HPEDSB) Strategic Plan identifies a system 
action of annual increase in the percentage of students meeting the provincial standards in Grade 3, 
6, 9, and 10 assessments. This is part of the Strategic Plan priority to improve student success and 
achievement. 
 
Background 
EQAO testing and reporting was on hold in 2020 and 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. During 
this pause on provincial assessments, EQAO piloted a new online platform to administer all 
assessments and created a new digital reporting system to enable educators to examine trends in 
the results more deeply. This new online environment included accessibility tools such as audio 
instructions and text readers. Additionally, the Ontario Ministry of Education implemented a new 
modernized mathematics curriculum and de-streaming in Grade 9 math to better reflect equitable 
and culturally responsive learning opportunities for all students.  

The 2020-2021 school year saw students in Grades 3, 6, 9, and 10 re-engaged in these provincial 
literacy and numeracy assessments. The primary and junior EQAO assessments, delivered to 
Grades 3 and 6 students respectively, included reading, writing and mathematical activities. The 
Grade 9 EQAO assessment focused on mathematics while the Grade 10 assessment measured 
students’ literacy capabilities in reading and writing. The Grade 10 Ontario Secondary School 
Literacy Test (OSSLT) is a graduation requirement. 
 
Current situation 
Students experienced many disruptions to their learning during the pandemic. The EQAO data, 
alongside other sources of information, can strengthen conversations about students’ learning. The 
data is being used amongst educators to: 

 see trends in student learning and progress; 

 gain insight into whether students are meeting curriculum expectations in reading, writing, 
and math at key stages of their education, as well as students’ attitudes and habits towards 
learning;  

 to identify areas of growth and need; and,  

 assist with improving student achievement and well-being at individual, classroom, school, 
board, and provincial levels.   

 
 
 
 

Page 54



  Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(c) 

December 12, 2022 
  

 

The EQAO results are a snapshot of performance in a moment of time for students within 
HPEDSB. In our initial analysis of the data, we see some promising indicators for improved 
achievement and a reduced gap in achievement between the provincial data and HPEDSB data, 
as measured by the primary and junior assessments. This is an important shift to acknowledge the 
work of HPEDSB educators to mitigate learning loss, close gaps and promote meaningful student 
learning and growth during the pandemic.  
 
Results for HPEDSB students are shown in the following table and are a new baseline for 
improving student learning opportunities and outcomes to support students reaching provincial 
standards of achievement.  
 
HPEDSB Achievement Results 

Primary Assessment (Grade 3) 
Percent of students achieving at the provincial standard (Level 3 or 4):  

 
Reading Writing Mathematics 

HPEDSB 69 61 56 

Province 73 65 59 
 

Junior Assessment (Grade 6) 
Percent of students achieving at the provincial standard (Level 3 or 4):  

 
Reading  Writing Mathematics 

HPEDSB 79 78 33 

Province 85 84 47 

 

Grade 9 Mathematics 
Percent of students achieving at the provincial standard (Level 3 or 4):  

HPEDSB 37 

Province 52 
 

Grade 10 Ontario Secondary Literacy Test (OSSLT) 
Percent of students achieving at the provincial standard (Level 3 or 4):  

HPEDSB 67 

Province 82 

 
 

 

 

Page 55



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(d) 

December 12, 2022 
  

  

 

 
 

Decision ___   Information _X_ 

To: Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 
 
From: Darren McFarlane, Superintendent of Education, Human Resources Support Services 
 Ben Chapman, Manager, Human Resources - Labour Relations & Staffing 
 
Re:   Staffing and Recruitment Update 

 
Purpose  
To provide an update related to the staffing and recruitment strategies implemented to address the 
shortage of staff across the district to fill both vacant positions and daily absences. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan 
One of our strategic plan goals is to create environments where students and staff feel safe and are 
supported to learn, work and thrive. For our system to function optimally, we are committed to 
continuously monitoring and replenishing our casual lists of people available to fill positions.  This 
requires our Human Resources team to analyze our data, look beyond our traditional methodologies 
and seek out better ways to meet our staffing needs. 
 
Background  

Since the pandemic, school boards across the province have been struggling to secure adequate 
staffing to meet their hiring needs.  Hastings Prince Edward is no exception and continues to 
experience the effects of the pandemic locally.  Between September to November this year, we 
have experienced an additional 1828 staff absences compared to the same period last year and we 
currently have just under 200 staff members on various forms of leave.  Daily staff absence fill rates 
are consistent in the mid-60% success range which creates considerable stress on our system.  
School administrators, managers and supervisors are investing significant time to address staffing 
shortages on a daily basis. 

 

Current situation 

The Human Resources Support Services department is engaged in a continuous hiring cycle across 
positions and we are reflecting on innovative ways to expand our engagement with potential 
candidates.  Through the redesigned Board website, a new careers webpage features prominent 
access to all of our employment opportunities.  The Simplification module on the Apply to Education 
platform has removed barriers for teacher and support staff applicants. Recently, we attended the 
local Quinte Career Fair and had a strong response from attendees expressing interest in positions 
across a variety of roles.  Early in the new year, we will have teams attending the Faculty of 
Education Career Fairs at both Queen’s and Trent University and will be scheduling interviews on 
site for occasional teaching opportunities. We are also engaging with other education faculties to 
forge new formal relationships to bolster increased practicum placement students in HPE.  Finally, 
we are reaching out to establish new local community partnerships in an effort to assist with our 
recruitment efforts. 

 
  

Page 56



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(d) 

December 12, 2022 
 

We are pleased to share good news.  The recruitment efforts are collectively having the desired 
impact as we have been able to fill an additional 409 absences across the system between 
September and November compared to last year.  Our recruitment data across key positions 
includes the following statistics: 

 
○ Educational Assistants: 38 
○ Elementary Teachers: 8 
○ Secondary Teachers: 18 
○ Custodians: 5 
○ Occasional Teachers 

■ Elementary: 33 hired or being processed for hire 
■ Secondary: 25 hired or being processed for hire 

○ Casual Support Staff 
■ Educational Assistants: 22 hired or being processed for hire 
■ Clerical: 11 hired or being processed for hire 

○ Emergency Workers: 42  
***Note:  Data reflects the number of people hired versus the full-time equivalent for the position (FTE). 

 
We have a shared sense of urgency and the Human Resources Support Services team is deeply 
committed to our recruitment efforts in order to enable our system to best serve our students, staff 
and school communities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 57



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(e) 

December 12, 2022 
 

 

 
            Decision __   Information _X_ 

 
  

 
To:      Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 

 
From: Nick Pfeiffer, Superintendent, Business Services   
 
Re: 2022-2023 Revised Estimates 

 
Purpose 

This report is being brought forward to provide information on the Revised Estimates for the 2022-
2023 fiscal year. 

 
Link to Strategic Plan 
The 2020-2025 Strategic plan includes an action to improve public relations by providing information 
that is timely, transparent and accessible for all  
 
Background 
The Education Act has specific requirements for school boards regarding the preparation and 
adoption of financial estimates (budgets) and revised estimates.  Budgets are submitted to the 
Ministry of Education by June 30 of each year for the following school year which runs from 
September 1 to August 31.  Revised estimates are budgets that are updated for changes in 
enrolment, staffing, revenues, and expenses; these are submitted to the Ministry by December 15 of 
each year.  Revised estimates are more accurate than budgets as the information and assumptions 
that they contain are more certain than those of the previous spring when the budgets were 
developed. 
 
The main factor driving changes between budget and revised estimates is increased student 
enrolment which results in increased revenues as school boards are generally funded on a per pupil 
basis.  The increased enrolment creates a requirement for additional teachers and teacher 
assistants which increase expenses.  As well, HPEDSB has received new Priorities and 
Partnerships Funding (PPF) for short-term or high-value initiatives.  This PPF funding adds to the 
revenues but has matching expenses for staff and resources. 
 
Current situation 
Enrolment 
The elementary enrolment for revised estimates is 10,727 compared to budgeted enrolment of 
10,533.  The revised secondary enrolment is 4,540 vs. 4,535 for budget.  The significant increase in 
elementary students occurred primarily in kindergarten.  The board is resuming a trend of increasing 
year-over-year enrolment. 
 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
The consolidated statement of operations shows the revenues, the expenses, and the surplus/deficit.   
 
There is an increase of $2.7 million in provincial legislative grants (Grants for Student Needs) and an 
increase of $1.1 million in other provincial grants (primarily PPF funding).  Total revenues are 
increased by $4.5 million.  These changes are almost exclusively due to the increased enrolment 
over that budgeted.   
 

Page 58



  Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(e) 

December 12, 2022 
  

 

Expenses are increased by $4.0 million, due primarily to additional staffing to meet the increased 
enrolment and additional PPF expenses.  The largest staff increase is classroom teachers to meet 
the increased student enrolment.  There are also related increases in education assistant, early 
childhood educator, and principal and vice-principal expenses.  PPF expenses are matched with 
equal offsetting revenues. 
 
The deficit for compliance purposes has decreased from budgeted $1.7 million to $1.3 million. 
 
Capital Spending 
The revised capital spending is increased to $33.7 million from the budget of $28.0 million.  The 
school condition improvement and school renewal amounts (both used for school building renewal 
projects) are increased by amounts unspent in 2021-22. 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A: 2022-2023 Revised Estimates Booklet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Education Centre 

156 Ann Street

Belleville, ON   K8N 3L3 

613-966-1170 1-800-267-4350

information@hpedsb.on.ca 

www.HPEschools.ca

2022-2023 REVISED 

ESTIMATES

Page 60



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board  2022-2023 Budget                                                              Page 1

HPEDSB Statistics …........................... …............................................................................ 2

Executive summary ….......................... …............................................................................ 3

Consolidated statement of operations ……............................................................................ 4

Provincial grants …............................... …............................................................................ 5

Statement of expenses ….....................…............................................................................ 7

Summary of staffing …..........................…............................................................................ 8

Capital expenditures summary ….........…............................................................................ 9

Accumulated surplus-deficit …............. …............................................................................ 10

Glossary …............................................…............................................................................ 11

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page 61



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 2

Student enrolment

Elementary 10,727

Secondary 4,541

15,268

Schools

Elementary schools 32

K-12 schools 2

7-12 schools 4

Secondary schools 1

K-8 Virtual school 1

40

Trustees and student trustees

10 (9 elected, one appointed, plus three student trustees)

Elector population

109,463

Jurisdiction area 

7221 square kilometres

Students transported

10,148

Contracted bus operators
12

Daily kilometres travelled (excluding taxis)

23,324 (some routes/runs shared with Algonquin and Lakeshore Catholic District School Board)

HPEDSB STATISTICS

Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board is a member of the Tri-Board Student 

Transportation Services consortium, with Algonquin and Lakeshore Catholic District School Board, 

and Limestone District School Board. 

Page 62



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 

The Education Act has specific requirements for school boards regarding the preparation and 

adoption of financial estimates (budgets) and revised estimates.  Budgets are submitted to the 

Ministry of Education by June 30 of each year for the following school year which runs from 

September 1 to August 31.  Revised estimates are budgets that are updated for changes in 

enrolment, staffing, revenues, and expenses; these are submitted to the Ministry by December 15 of 

each year.  Revised estimates are more accurate than budgets as the information and assumptions 

that they contain are more certain than those of the previous spring when the budgets were 

developed. 

The main factor driving changes between budget and revised estimates is increased student 

enrolment which results in increased revenues as school boards are generally funded on a per pupil 

basis.  The increased enrolment creates a requirement for additional teachers and teacher 

assistants which increase expenses.  As well, HPEDSB has received new Priorities and 

Partnerships Funding (PPF) for short-term or high-value initiatives.  This PPF funding adds to the 

revenues but has matching expenses for staff and resources. 

Enrolment 

The elementary enrolment for revised estimates is 10,727 compared to budgeted enrolment of 

10,533.  The revised secondary enrolment is 4,541 vs. 4,535 for budget.  The significant increase in 

elementary students occurred primarily in kindergarten.  The board is resuming a trend of increasing 

year-over-year enrolment. 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 

The consolidated statement of operations shows the revenues, the expenses, and the 

surplus/deficit.   

There is an increase of $2.7 million in provincial legislative grants (Grants for Student Needs) and an 

increase of $1.1 million in other provincial grants (primarily PPF funding).  Total revenues are 

increased by $4.5 million.  These changes are almost exclusively due to the increased enrolment 

over that budgeted.   

Expenses are increased by $4.0 million, due primarily to additional staffing to meet the increased 

enrolment and additional PPF expenses.  The largest staff increase is classroom teachers to meet 

the increased student enrolment.  There are also related increases in education assistant, early 

childhood educator, and principal and vice-principal expenses.  PPF expenses are matched with 

equal offsetting revenues. 

The deficit for compliance purposes has decreased from budgeted $1.7 million to $1.3 million. 

Capital Spending 

The revised capital spending is increased to $33.7 million from the budget of $28.0 million.  The 

school condition improvement and school renewal amounts (both used for school building renewal 

projects) are increased by amounts unspent in 2021-22. 

 

Page 63



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 4

2022-2023 

Revised 

Estimates

2022-2023 

Estimates

 Increase/ 

(Decrease) to 

Estimates 

 % Change 

from Estimates 2021-22 Actual

Revenues

Provincial legislative grants 176,140,590 173,760,003 2,380,587          1.37             167,878,495

Local taxation 38,520,357 38,520,357 -                         -               39,085,898

Total grants for student needs 214,660,947 212,280,360 2,380,587          1.12             206,964,393

Provincial grants - other 2,822,699 1,776,400 1,046,299                          0.59 7,563,774

School generated funds 

revenues 3,046,588 3,046,588
-                         

-               2,263,679

Federal grants and fees 2,193,740 1,864,272 329,468             0.18             2,091,037

Investment income 60,000 60,000 -                         -               128,808

Total other fees and revenues

  from school boards 42,000 42,000
-                         

-               6,768

Fees and revenues from other

  sources 3,301,269 2,556,000 745,269 0.29 2,461,633

 $  226,127,243  $  221,625,620 4,501,623                          0.02  $221,480,092 

Expenses

Instruction 168,902,531 164,799,433 4,103,098          2.49               164,910,113

Administration 6,963,201 6,869,933 93,268               1.36               7,748,618

Transporation 17,905,729 17,645,729 260,000             1.47               16,688,381

Pupil accomodation 27,929,637 28,386,869 (457,232)            (1.61)              28,700,974

School generated funds 3,046,588 3,046,588 -                         -                 2,198,968

Other expenses          1,404,484          1,354,484                50,000 -                        2,012,978 

 $  226,152,170  $  222,103,036 4,049,134                          1.82  $222,260,032 

Annual surplus (deficit) (24,927)            (477,416)          452,489             (94.78)            (779,940)        

Unavailable for compliance 1,284,781 1,263,147 21,634               1.71               1,391,849

Surplus/deficit for compliance (1,309,708)$     (1,740,563)$     430,855$                       (24.75) (2,171,789)$   

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Page 64



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 5

2022-23 

Revised 

Estimates

2022-23 

Estimates

 Increase/ 

(Decrease) to 

Estimates 

 % Change 

from 

Estimates 

2021-2022 

Actuals

Operating Allocation

Pupil foundation        86,041,846        84,734,784 1,307,062           1.54               83,655,786       

School foundation        13,152,256        13,072,900 79,356                0.61               12,990,462       

Special education        26,737,368        26,329,624 407,744              1.55               25,824,818       

Language          2,405,177          2,405,177 -                          -                 2,266,013         

Supported school             571,756             631,853 (60,097)               (9.51)              639,082            

Remote and rural             659,252             718,809 (59,557)               (8.29)              716,299            

Rural and northern education             585,348             585,348 -                          -                 593,671            

Learning opportunities          3,013,532          2,709,350 304,182              11.23             2,390,059         

Continuing education and other

  program             550,652             533,246 17,406                3.26               468,760            

Cost adjustment and teacher

  qualification & experience 

(Teachers)        19,541,811        19,607,185 (65,374)               (0.33)              19,773,520       

New teacher induction program

  (NTIP)               86,614               86,614 -                          -                 67,809              

Cost adjustment and teacher

  qualification & experience (ECE)          1,072,778          1,014,379 58,399                5.76               1,000,517         

Restraint savings (137,145)          (137,145)          -                          -                 (137,145)          

Transportation        16,021,081        15,542,519 478,562              3.08               16,433,581       

Administration and governance          5,161,795          5,124,682 37,113                0.72               5,073,268         

School renewal          3,537,076          3,519,627 17,449                0.50                        3,534,937 

Debt repayment (interest portion)          1,420,185          1,420,185 -                          -                          1,496,147 

Deferred capital contributions          8,819,912          9,225,301 (405,389)             (4.39)                       9,330,560 

School operations        17,569,846        17,428,322 141,524              0.81               16,874,722       

Community use of schools             227,053             227,053 -                          -                 244,162            

Declining enrolment adjustment                       -   -                          -                 135,437            

Indigenous education          2,901,537          2,901,536 1                         0.00               2,122,147         

Mental health and well-being grant          1,122,222          1,116,207 6,015                  0.54               721,781            

Supports for students fund          1,766,424          1,766,331 93                       0.01               1,854,004         

Program leadership grant          1,000,496             996,916 3,580                  0.36               941,753            

Trustee association fee               58,084               58,084 -                          -                 57,394              

Support for COVID-19 outbreak          2,501,305          2,501,305 -                          -                 -                   

Funding stabilization allocation -                   

Sub total 216,388,261$  214,120,192$  2,268,069$                        0.01 209,069,544$   

Less tangible capital assets (515,000)          (515,000)          -                          -                 (932,914)          

Less school renewal capital, 

  Interest and temporary

  accomodation; Exp learning capital (1,212,314)       (1,324,832)       112,518              (8.49)              (1,172,237)       

Total operating allocation 214,660,947$  212,280,360$  2,380,587$                        1.12 206,964,393$   

PROVINCIAL GRANTS ALLOCATIONS

Page 65



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 6

2022-23   

Revised 

Estimates

2022-23 

Estimates

 Increase/ 

(Decrease) to 

Estimates 

 % Change 

from 

Estimates 

2021-2022 

Actuals

PPF grants 

Educators autism AQ subsidy                 10,424               10,400 24                       0.23               

Math strategy               558,000             558,000 -                          -                 

Learn and work bursary                 20,000               20,000 -                          -                 

Indigenous Grad Coach               115,385             115,385 -                          -                 

De-streaming Implementation Supports                 31,016               31,000 16                       0.05               

Early Intervention in Math for Students with Special Ed Needs               110,933             110,900 33                       0.03               

Entrepreneurship Education Pilot  Projects                 20,000               20,000 -                          -                 

Health Resources, Training and Supports                 10,500               10,500 -                          -                 

Skilled Trades Bursary Program                 12,000               12,000 -                          -                 

Summer Learning Special Education Supports               122,875             108,400 14,475                13.35             

Tutoring Supports               640,067             640,050 17                       0.00               

Transportation for Children and Youth in Care                 62,000                       -   62,000                -                 

Math Additional Qualifications                 32,500                       -   32,500                -                 

Demographic Data Gathering                 31,971                       -   31,971                -                 

Anti-Sex Trafficking Protocol Development and Implementation                 11,597                       -   11,597                -                 

Connectivity at Schools Program               186,603                       -   186,603              -                 

Professional Assessments & Systematic Evidence-Based Reading 

Programs               115,763                       -   115,763              -                 

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) - Ventilation (capital               210,815                       -   210,815              -                 

Supporting Students with Disabilities               159,523                       -   159,523              -                 

Ukrainian Student Support                 11,527                       -   11,527                -                 

Experiential Learning for Guidance-Teacher Counsellors                 27,935                       -   27,935                -                 

Recovery of prior year unspent PPFs (20,319)              

Other provincial grants -                          -                 

OYAP               291,585             139,765 151,820              108.63           

MPBSD In-Kind PPE                 50,000 

Total Priorities and Partnership Funding 2,822,699$        1,776,400$      1,016,618$                      57.23 6,823,044$     

PROVINCIAL GRANTS - OTHER SUMMARY

Page 66



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 7

 2022-23 

Revised 

Estimates 

 2022-23 

Estimates 

 Increase/ 

(Decrease) to  

Estimates 

 % Change 

from 

Estimates 

 2021-22 

Actuals 

Instruction 

Classroom teachers     104,899,143     104,058,620 840,523         0.81                   104,593,894 

Supply staff         5,943,339         5,189,764 753,575         14.52                     6,759,530 

Teacher assistants       14,431,765       13,203,221 1,228,544      9.30                     13,068,215 

Early childhood educator         4,439,000         4,323,276 115,724         2.68                       4,271,128 

Textbooks/supplies         4,718,344         4,146,132 572,212         13.80                     4,025,030 

Computers         1,468,934         1,431,605 37,329           2.61                       1,127,950 

(Para) professionals and 

technicians         5,988,331         5,940,864 47,467           0.80                       6,023,781 

Library & guidance         2,812,641         2,812,256 385                0.01                       2,854,248 

Staff development         1,320,988         1,452,883 (131,895)        (9.08)                         520,223 

Department heads            471,127            471,127 -                     -                            357,136 

Principals & vice-principals         9,482,992         9,231,337 251,655         2.73                       9,390,968 

School office         5,866,734         5,830,390 36,344           0.62                       6,004,218 

Coordinators and consultants         5,680,825         5,538,681 142,144         2.57                       4,378,280 

Continuing education            494,896            494,716 180                0.04                          546,909 
Amortization            883,472            674,561 208,911         30.97                        988,603 

Instruction subtotal 168,902,531$ 164,799,433$ 4,103,098$                   2.49 164,910,113$   

Administration 

Trustees            225,541            225,541 -                     -                            172,561 

Director & supervisory officer            711,254            721,454 (10,200)          (1.41)                      1,098,679 

Board administration         5,892,333         5,825,732 66,601           1.14                       6,323,774 
Amortizations and write downs            134,073              97,206 36,867           37.93                        153,604 

Administration subtotal 6,963,201$     6,869,933$     93,268$                        1.36 7,748,618$       

Transportation

Pupil transportation       17,597,929       17,337,929 260,000         1.50                     16,388,772 

Transportation-provincial schools            307,800            307,800 -                     -                            299,609 

Amortizations and write downs                      -                        -   -                     -                                      -   

Loss on disposal of TCA and assets 

Held for sale                      -                        -   -                     -                                      -   

Transportation subtotal 17,905,729$   17,645,729$   260,000$                      1.47 16,688,381$     

Pupil accommodation 

School operations/maintenance       16,111,070       16,047,118 63,952           0.40                     16,423,074 

School renewal expense         2,205,294         2,205,294 -                     -                         2,205,294 

Other pupil accommodation         1,518,019         1,388,051 129,968         9.36                       1,592,970 

Amortizations and write downs         8,095,254         8,746,406 (651,152)        (7.44)                      8,479,303 
Loss on dipsosal of TCA and assets

  held for sale                      -                        -   -                     -                                   333 

Pupil accommodation subtotal 27,929,637$   28,386,869$   (457,232)$                   (1.61) 28,700,974$     

Other

School generated funds-expenses         3,046,588         3,046,588 -                     -                         2,198,968 

Other non-operating expenses              50,000                      -   50,000           -                         2,012,978 

Amortizations and write downs                      -                        -   -                     -                                      -   

Loss on dipsosal of TCA and assets

  held for sale                      -                        -   -                     -                                      -   
Provision for contingencies         1,354,484         1,354,484 -                     -                                      -   

Other subtotal 4,451,072$     4,401,072$     50,000$                        1.14 4,211,946$       

Total operating expenses 226,152,170$ 222,103,036$ 4,049,134$                   1.82 222,260,032$   

STATEMENT OF EXPENSES

Page 67



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 8

Oct. 31/22

 FTE      

 2022-23 

Budget 

FTE       

 Increase/

(Decrease) 

to budget 

FTE 

 % 

Change 

from 

Budget 

FTE 

 2021-22 

Financials          

FTE       

Classroom instruction

Classroom teachers - other than included elsewhere 916.9             898.2         18.70           2.08         904.2         

Classroom Teachers - French - Extended and Immersion -                -            -              -             

Classroom teachers - student success teachers (secondary) 7.0                7.0            -              -           7.3             

Classroom teachers - resource teachers and other 2.0                2.0            -              -           3.0             

Classroom teachers - principals (instruction time only) 1.5                4.6            (3.10)            (67.39)       2.4             

Classroom Teachers - Vice-Principals (Instruction Time Only) 3.1                -            3.10             -           1.4             

Classroom Teachers - Care and Treatment and Correctional Facilities 6.0                5.0            1.00             20.00        5.8             

Total classroom instruction staff 936.5             916.8         19.7             2.15         924.1         

Teacher assistants and early childhood educators

Teacher assistants (general) 270.8             261.0         9.80             3.75         271.2         

Early childhood educators 74.0               72.0          2.00             2.78         73.0           

Care and treatment and correctional facilities assistants 5.0                4.0            1.00             25.00        8.0             

Total teacher assistants and early childhood educators 349.8             337.0         12.8             3.80         352.2         

Student support - professionals, paraprofessionals and technicians

Student support staff - social services 13.5               14.0          (0.50)            (3.57)        15.5           

Student support staff - child & youth workers 11.8               12.8          (1.00)            (7.81)        13.3           

Student support staff - speech services 3.0                3.0            -              -           3.0             

Student support staff - psychological services 4.0                4.0            -              -           5.0             

Student support staff - attendance counselling 2.0                1.0            1.00             100.00      2.0             

Student support staff - lunchroom or noon hour or bus or yard supervision 8.6                9.3            (0.70)            (7.53)        9.1             

Student support staff - computer and other technical services 20.0               21.8          (1.80)            (8.26)        21.0           

Student support staff - administrative support staff 3.0                2.5            0.50             20.00        2.0             

Student support staff - other prof and paraprof, teachers or teacher assistants 1.0                1.0            -              -           1.0             

Student support - professionals, paraprofessionals and technicians 66.9               69.4          (2.5)             (3.60)        71.9           

Library and guidance

Library and guidance staff - library teachers 6.0                5.0            1.00             20.00        5.8             

Library and guidance staff - guidance teachers 12.3               12.3          -              -           11.8           

Library and guidance staff - library technicians 16.2               16.2          -              -           16.2           y                   

Library and guidance 34.5               33.5          1.0              2.99         33.8           

School administration

School administration staff - principals (administrative time) 38.5               38.5          -              -           38.1           

School administration staff - vice-principals (administrative time) 26.9               25.9          1.00             3.86         26.1           

School administration staff - administrative support staff 80.0               78.8          1.20             1.52         78.3           

Coordinators and consultants

Staff - coordinators and consultants 30.0               45.7          (15.70)          (34.35)       36.7           

Staff - administrative support staff 5.0                5.0            -              -           5.00           

School administration 180.4             193.9         (13.5)            (6.96)        184.2         
.

Administration and governance

Admin & govern staff - trustees 13.0               13.0          -              -           13.0           

Admin & govern staff - directors and supervisory officers 6.0                6.0            -              -           4.0             

Admin & govern staff - directors office 1.0                1.0            -              -           3.0             

Admin & govern staff - finance 7.0                8.0            (1.00)            (12.50)       7.3             

Admin & govern staff - finance - capital planning capacity-related 1.0                1.0            -              -           1.0             

Admin & govern staff - procurement 3.0                2.0            1.00             50.00        3.0             

Admin & govern staff - human resource administration 11.0               11.0          -              -           11.5           

Admin & govern staff - payroll administration 4.0                4.0            -              -           4.0             

Admin & govern staff - information technology administration 4.0                4.2            (0.20)            (4.76)        5.0             

Admin & govern staff - other 8.0                9.0            (1.00)            (11.11)       10.6           

School administration 58.0               59.2          (1.2)             (2.03)        62.4           

School operations

School operations staff - managerial or professional 7.0                7.0            -              -           7.0             

School operations staff - administrative support staff 3.0                3.0            -              -           5.0             

School operations staff - custodial staff 112.8             114.8         (2.00)            (1.74)        113.8         

School operations staff - maintenance 22.0               22.0          -              -           23.0           

School operations 144.8             146.8         (2.0)             (1.36)        148.8         

Staffing total 1,770.9          1,756.6      14.3             0.81         1,777.4      

SUMMARY OF STAFFING Full-Time Equivalent (FTE)

Page 68



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 9

2022-23 

Revised 

Estimates

2022-23

Estimates

 Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

to   

Estimates 

 % Change 

from  

Estimates 

2021-2022 

Acutals

Minor capital assets (furniture, 
515,000           515,000        -                    -                   932,914             

computers, vehicles)

Land, buildings, construction in progress

Eastside Secondary School 1,632,045        1,736,500     (104,455)       (6.02)                2,021,927          

Centre Hastings Secondary School 1,591,625        1,296,097     295,528         22.80               309,555             

Easthill Elementary School 10,324,552      10,504,527   (179,975)       (1.71)                4,575,860          

School renewal 1,981,079        1,500,000     481,079         32.07               1,798,719          

School condition improvement 15,245,017      10,679,005   4,566,012      42.76               9,302,751          

COVID resilience funding (CVRIS) 1,850,418        1,527,645     322,773         21.13               (153,017)            

Climate action incentive fund -                    -                   

School generated funds -                    -                   46,094               

Other 337,418           -                    337,418         -                   474,442             

Interest on capital 243,500           243,500        -                    -                   206,409             

33,720,654$    28,002,274$ 5,718,380$                    20.42 19,515,654$      

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES SUMMARY

Page 69



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 10

Accumulated 

Surplus(Deficit) 

September 1, 

2022

Accumulated 

Surplus(Deficit) - 

In-Year Increase 

(Decrease)

Accumulated 

Surplus(Deficit) 

August 31, 2023

Available for compliance - unappropriated 9,952,368 (1,321,613)              8,630,755                   

Available for compliance - internally appropriated 227,501                 11,905.00 239,406                      

Total accumulated surplus (deficit) available for

  compliance 10,179,869$      (1,309,708)$            8,870,161$                 

Total accumulated surplus (deficit) unavailable for

  compliance (1,326,092)         1,284,781               (41,311)                       

Total accumulated surplus/(deficit) 8,853,777$        (24,927)$                 8,828,850$                 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) - 2022/2023

Page 70



Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 2022-2023 Budget                                                               Page 11

GLOSSARY

Available for compliance - the gross in-year surplus (revenues minus expenses) minus the 

amount that is unavailable for compliance.

Unavailable for compliance -  Certain amounts are to be included as unavailable from 

compliance under Ontario Regulation 488/10 Determination of Boards’ Surpluses and 

Deficits.  These amounts are deducted from the gross in-year surplus (revenues minus 

expenses) to determine the in-year surplus for compliance with Regulation 488/10.  The 

items included as unavailable for compliance are: employee future benefits, interest to be 

accrued, school generated funds, revenues recognized for land, and liability for contaminated 

Full time equivalent (FTE) - unit measure equivalent to one full time employee

Page 71



Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(f) 

December 12, 2022 
 

Education Centre, 156 Ann Street, Belleville, ON  K8N 3L3 
Telephone: 613-966-1170 Toll-free: 1-800-267-4350  

www.HPEschools.ca 

 
           Decision _X_   Information _ _ 

 
  

 
To:      Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board 

 
From: Nick Pfeiffer, Superintendent, Business Services 
 Kim Horrigan, Senior Manager, Facility Services 
 
Re: Tender RFQ 2223-001: Gym/Auditorium Lighting and Heating Ventilation and Air 

Conditioning (HVAC) Renovations at Trenton High School (THS) 

 
Purpose 
This report brings forward a motion to recommend approval of a tender for RFQ 2223-001 
Gym/Auditorium Lighting and Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Renovations at 
Trenton High School (THS) in accordance with Procedure 505: Procurement. 
 
Link to the Strategic Plan 
The 2020-2025 Strategic plan includes an action to improve public relations by providing information 
that is timely, transparent and accessible for all. 
 
Background 
Various interior renovations are planned and have been underway since 2021 for THS through a 
phased approach. This phasing plan has been developed in collaboration with school 
administration, the architect and Facility Services staff. The phasing plan includes items such as 
asbestos abatement, culinary arts renovations, gym and auditorium HVAC renovations, auditorium 
lighting renovations, structural renovations and future HVAC renovations. The planned phases 
include: 

 Phase 1: Culinary Arts Renovation (currently in construction, planned completion Spring 2023) 

 Phase 2: Gym/Auditorium HVAC and Auditorium Lighting (tender approval phase) 

 Phase 3: Special Education Renovation (design phase) 

 Phase 4: Future HVAC Renovations (design phase) 
 
Current situation 
A tender (request for quote) RFQ 2223-001 closed October 22, 2022 for Phase 2: Gym/Auditorium 
HVAC and Auditorium Lighting Renovation at Trenton High School. Phase 2 includes new lighting 
within the existing auditorium space; new HVAC infrastructure within the main gymnasium and 
auditorium; structural reinforcement as required to facilitate installation of new HVAC equipment; 
and asbestos abatement as required to facilitate construction. This phase of renovations is 
proposed to start December 2022 and the full phase be completed by end of December 2023. 
There was one compliant submission received. Following completion of a two-staged evaluation 
process to rank the tender received based first on experience and qualifications and then on price, 
it is recommended that the tender be awarded to Jean Daoust Construction Inc. 
 
Upon confirmation of passing the technical evaluation, the bid price was revealed to be 
$1,958,800.00, which is greater than the original estimated construction budget of $1.2 million. The 
discrepancy in anticipated budget verses the bid price is primarily the result of current market 
conditions that have been seen across many projects in the recent years, especially for projects 
involving large mechanical equipment. The scope of this project is essential to provide improved 

Page 72



  Regular Public Board Meeting 
Report 16(f) 

December 12, 2022 
  

Education Centre, 156 Ann Street, Belleville, ON  K8N 3L3 
Telephone: 613-966-1170 Toll-free: 1-800-267-4350  

www.HPEschools.ca 

indoor air quality at THS, as well as improved safety in the auditorium as the current lighting 
infrastructure has caused the space to be unoccupiable. This project is funded through a  
combination of School Condition Improvement (SCI) funding and COVID-19 Resilience 
Infrastructure Stream (CVRIS), which are specific funding sources for building and infrastructure 
renewal projects. The CVRIS funding is required to be spent, and project work completed, by 
December 31, 2023. 
 
Recommendation 
Moved:    
Seconded:   
 

That Hastings and Prince Edward District School Board approve RFQ 2223-001 to 
Jean Daoust Construction Inc. for Phase 2: Gym/Auditorium HVAC and Auditorium 
Lighting at Trenton High School in the amount of $1,958,800.00.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73


	Draft Agenda Public Board Meeting December 12 2022
	Draft  Organizational and Public Board Meeting Minutes November 21 2022
	OPSBA Report Public Board Meeting Dec 2022 report
	Report from Gov and Policy regarding Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee
	Governance Directive - Trustee Vacancy Ad Hoc Committee
	Report Recommendation Governance Directives Public Participation and Delegations
	Governance Directive - Public Participation and Delegations
	Governance Directive- Delegation Request Form
	Director's Annual Report for Board
	2022 Directors Annual Report Booklet
	PBRM Reading Literacy Update
	RPBM EQAO Report
	Report to Public Board - Staffing and Recruitment Update_Dec 12 2022
	Report_Revised Estimates_Public Board_Dec 12 2022
	Appendix A_2022-2023 Revised Estimates Booklet_Public Board_Dec 12, 2022
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	Recommendation Report Gym Auditorium Lighting and Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Renovations at Trenton High School (THS)_Final



